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organization in Hew Zealard_ ..But we tried very hard not to go to New @
Zealand. We were invited four times to go ahd every time until the fourth

we sald no. 50 that was that. when we came back we accepted..Donald /K/}“‘A
was offered all kinds of things. We were, in fact, offered a job in China. /(/
Can't remamber now what it was. There were some jobs in China they

wanied him to go to but he said no. By this time we had the three children

and then he was offered the International Secretaryship of, what had been,

a very lively organization, called The International Fellowship of

Reconciliation. 1LF.0.R. That had an English and a Swiss...t had a number of

groups, quite a very lively group in Britain. And Donald went out to run the 55)
|F.O.R. and at that point he ran into Tess Becsuse Tess was already in E*“i fh-ef (P
Yienha, 10 that group, scting as the beuetaru hﬂ‘«-‘t*‘u] come from & very S.lL{-’-ﬁ—*'W
Nwely group and she'll tell gou mare about it, and had been sent to Yienna
to work in the group. And when Donald was Sent as the international
secretary, Tess was one of the people already established and, therefore,
she became Tinally his secretary. (Cat chat and wild animal chat.) During
that 1ime bad things happened. First of all, we were in the buildup, by this
tima, to Hitler 28899 And Donald had a commitiee, ane member of which
was a Roman Catholic called Maier. Caspar Maier. An Austrian Roman
Catholic was a member of this committee which was trying to represent
G;»L&erﬁ'?} and he was a representative. And it was a very difficult time.
This man, | later discovered and '] show you the relevant letters, was
determined Lo turn this to the right politically and as far as possible under
Catholic influence. And you will understand the whole of this story when |
show you these letters that | eventually wrote, in defense of Donald, to
two people, one in Britain and one in America, about the machinations of
this man against which machinations we were helped by Grossefater, by
Karii, by dear Eugen Benedikt. Weite Ralb-e 9 cosSvates
K: Who was Eugen Benedikt. 7 Qe : g o

1 He was @ yonderful "wadseeirghe (?) Karli called Oscar Bok ié:a""w-\rE']c.Eu

abe’{?} The "white raven’ Oscar was a student of law and Donald’

arrivel and his outlook appealed to Oscar and Oscar was Donald's he]p and

with & great deal of his own intelligence and hard work built up and e o

thanked Donald for the institution of the Afptfurschoendempfer— — * * chtape-

Tt

-wanderangl?; Now that haed various sides which | liked or didn't Tike but

it was a very, very living organization and Oscar BSk ran it. And Donald
kept in touch always with him because he was in touch with such & lot of
students. And then we were helped by dear Otio Bauer, the littie Little
Otto Bauer, about which i've got & 1ot in this letter. He was a wonderful

little man He ran the Henschhelickapsar(7) The-Menschbetioperser(?) &
wa&Z-a small journal run by a group cailed Die Reks ziahﬁten@?ﬁ of Mern?

which OtLo Bauer was the founder. ﬁt;’ﬂ

K: These were Catholics.

I: He was a left-wing Catholic. He was @ stael worker. He was an out and
outer. And he remained a Catholic and he was in all kinds of tight corners
and one day | said to him, I'11 never forget it, he was o wonderful little




wa suofer {Kﬁ n’w) (

man... Karli knev all about these people and so did brassefsttal?) He's ([T'l’“-’
living in New York. You should visit him. .
K. He's still alive? "‘
I; Yeg.
K: where does one find him?
I: I've got his address. He was always known as little Otto Bauer. | said to
him one day,"0Otio, you're going to be put out of the church. You're going to
he excommunicated.” And he said "Oh no i'm not. The church is not going to
excommunicate me. The church thinks long thoughts, Irenie It thinks in
terms of generations, even centuries.” | said, "l know.” And he said, "You
know one day, trenig they're going to want me. Believe me, they're going to
want me. And I'm staying put.” And that's whal he did. He was a
wonderful person
K: what happened to him? How did he escape?
|: He got away from Hitler in the end and he got to America. | don't know
how. But in Yienna there's a person who's in touch with him who 15 an oid
socialist and he gave me Oito Bauer's address which | have and you should
contact him. 11 show you my two letters. ' put you two in thers and let
you have o look at them. Well | dop’t know what happened to him but ne got
away with his family. His address is in New York. God knows how he's
liwing. | can't imagine. He was a steel warker. | ought to have written
him....But this chap who kKeeps in touch with him 18 coming hers 1o seg us In
August and he worked in the Vienna Benetriekia) (Gelfeindewien) all his 2k s wM B *‘1'
1ife and so did his wife who died recently. And he is a good old-fashioned, (c{,la Fiﬂ
VYiennese socialist of the origingl order. His name is Fritz Lenepand | can
give you his address. He was Jugendﬁnf g2 (7) He was the person wht-"\
,fl-ui s
S

arranged holidays for children in the country and his wife was a

kindergarten{® And he was very shortly arrestad but he was released

again at some point. He served his time and then he retired and now he's e
just a retired old social demaocrat in Vienna. The interesting thing about i u*?s, i
him to me is at a certain point he wanted to learn English and we got him el ;-4"
over pere, Yarious people helped him ﬂﬁﬂ w2 got him over here and he cams Jed

to Pycombe Corner and he stayed*in Pycombe Corner.

K. Otto Bauer?

I: No, Fritz Lener, At that time he was just a young socialist. He came to

Pycombe Corner and he has remained what | call a real old-Tashioned

socialist, from Yienna, the best kind. And he told us about lifean the

blocks. And one day | said to him, "Look here Fritz,” | said. "You always

| 38y, when you're talking about your 1ife in Yienna as a young socialist, you

| always say ‘we did this and we did that. Why do you never say 'I'?" "well’

|

]

he said, "It never was | because anything that we had to arrange about our
wes, and it was hard, it was always we. It was either running the block
oFr running something the olock had initiated and | just don't think that
way. 1t's always we. Now that's Fritz. and it is exactly what never
happened in any housing block here. No housing block Teoks after its own
affairs here. No housing Block has children’'s libraries. Une woman, |




©

interyiewed, said, "Oh yes, they give us the shell, but where's the spirit?”
Fritz says the opposite.
K: well it's completely different from here. Now tell me about this
strange fellow Kolnai. Where did he come from, Er-:::sﬁpfaler? | know very
little about him. | know he was a Catholic and thet he ended up at Laval
University. | don't know his story in Austria. | know he finished in Laval.
I: 1 can show you one or two of hig letters. Wwell, how can | begin about
Kolnai?
K: | remeber him .. with o beard..
|: He didn't have & beard in those days. He was an exiled Hungarian Jew :
and he was & very constant contributor to the Yolksfubhel?) And he was & Lawt
good friend of Karli's. He married, in the end, one of the two Ganish
sisters.
K: | don't know them.
I: well he was an eccentric of the very first order. He was a total
eccentric. A very difficult person to help. A person who was a
Chestertonian. His English was Chestertonian, it was built up on
Chesterton and he sounded like Chesterton. And his attitude was best
described in a letter which | will show you. Grossgibter played a very
difficult role because at that time that we're talking about, while Donald
was trying 1o run the 1LF.OR, t:rnﬁﬁﬁéter' iz mentioned in my letter, slong
with Karli and Otto Bauer and other peapie who helped Donald in his
impossible situation, Donald being Donald, with this very very
maniputative, totally jesuitical ..
K: Baspar Maier..
I: He was very convinced. He wasn't just being manipulative for fun. He
was deadly serious. And some of his intimate friends were followers of
_(Ziebre?) {Cuypra?} in a big way. And he was hoping to turn the LF.OR. in
4 Yienna into an appendage of (Cypra®). And Donald, who was innocent and
ol good, thought that he would succeed in persuading Caspar by long patience
and by affectionate friendship, that he couldn't do this Kind of thing to
people who were calling themselves a fellowship. They were supposed to
be honest with sach other. Donald did not, of course, succeed. But in the
effort to do so, he gol gquite i1l and for @ time he was in hospital. Very
much reduced, indeed. And then my two letiers come in. By the lime we
were putting up this fight, which | had until now completely forgotien,
because of the thing that came after, the coming of Hitler, I'd washed 1t
all out of my mind. _.1'1l show you the letters.
K: This was all before Hitler?
l: well during the buildup. 1929-1933,
K: After the Dollfuss murder?
. well the Dollfuss murder happened in the middle. {But please note,

f\ﬂﬁ—ﬁ was actually murdered in 1934 EK.] T
o (R Now Sninn (1, Lo bivry gpﬂ)

g
7@}&;5« K. That was not Ravenscroft Avenue? Mol T J O"’"

= 3

i+ That was a short time either hefore or after Favenscroft. | can't




remeber. | think before. fEarb?ed}ﬁlahn was the other so to speak high
figure in the Christian Left. And he and Karli were in constant exchange.
Karli regarded himself as being the Apocalyptic chap and they regarded
John as being the great revelutionary with & more harmaonious outcome.
But outcome is the wrong word Karli said his position was Apocalyptic in
the end. John's philosophical position was . What's the word he used. 1171
come to me when I'm not thinking. Anywau, John as you know was e
very widely resd..

K. 1 had te read him, John MachMurray, in school, Philosophy. And | didn't
ur:clera*&nd a wword of what he was writing in those days.

. John's books are all over here. He did the opposite thing.. Do you know
that BBC finally turned him down because they thought he was too radical
He was a very, very radical person. You only have to read his stuff beside
Karli in Christianity and the Social Revolution His aim was to put out
books for students and never mind about being a great philosophical name.
And he said to himself, "when I'm old and grownup and all this is over, |
will write my proper philosophical texts. In the meantime | have te write
things that students are going to take notice 07" And so he had three or
four great books. Freedom in the Modern World. You can't say you don't
understand it. It's very simple. Reason and Emotion, The Clue to History
and then the ather book 15 called The Boundaries of Sciance or whatevar,
And he wrote all these books for the students while he was teaching them.
K. Wwhere was he teaching? A
l: A1l over the place. He was Oxford He was London. He was
Brentford-Tyre and (7) to Johannesburg and finally feiched up, where he
belonged, in Edinburgh. But he was a professor of philosophy in London for
quite a long time. And every one of his books that I've mentioned can't
possibly be regarded as something you can't understand. You can't have
been given these books. | don't know what you were given. But these are
very simple books for students and i've got them here. You can have a look
at thern. Some of them are being re-published unlike Karli. Faber is
re-publishing or has re-published Reazon anhd Emotion. Pip said he thought
it was the best simple beok he had ever read in all his life. ..And then at
the end of his life he wrote the two books, the philosophy, and they were
called Seif as Agent and Persons in Relatieni{?} And, of course, he wrote
the early Marx material for Christianity and the Social Revelution You
read these two letters.

...{Garbled) After the Christian Left he went and Doug had & terrific battle
in the middie of that war with his Communist...

K That story | don't kKnow.

|: They had & Communist.. m a_paboie §
K: {Doug Jolly @g; Wwas 8 surgecn, ywho went to and worked in the
Spanish Civil War,
|: Karli turned to Doug &t one or two major crises of his life. Une was
when he and llona couldn't decide what they were going to do and where
they were going to live. it was to Doug they went and in the letter, which




| found in amongst those letters, they say, "This is all very hard and @
difficult to decide but please don't mention any of it to Kari,” That was -

fong, long ago.

K: ‘which decision is this? This is now 1946-477 After the war?

I- Oh yes, Well the question was...! think he said in this letter "I think we
could only live together and work together easily and properly in this
country.’

K: Englana?

| ¥es. Bui in any case he was in a state about it.

K: Tsm=bainy father?

I: .He wrote to Doug and talked o Doug about it And st the end of this
letter, which | need not repeat to you, but it was about how they were
going to manage the distance. They couldn’t carry on at great distance
from each other about &11 their problems. And | don't kKnov what happened.
| hever asked. But at the end of the letter he said, "Don't discuss it with
Kari,” because Doug was talking a lot with you at one time. You saw 4 Int
of Doug at one time and at the time when you were deciding whether to go
to Canada or not.

K: Oh .yes i know what you're talking ..

- All that time you were seeing a 1ot of Doug. And | presume that Karld
thought, therefore, well Doug's seeing a 1ot of Kari and at the end of the
ietter he said, well don't say anything te Kari. | want to give you the
obituary to read and of course Doug was at the heart of the Christian Left,
That was why he went to Spain. When he was in the middle of this, his
book became obliged reading to medical people, military medical people. it
was no doult at all that it was a breakthrough in military medicine. Mot
now, nowe it's all different but on the field and the Czech iCan't make out i
name at all} whom | wrote to 50 many times. He was g doctor also. He
was their military ..the chap who was ol the head of the battalion who
kept things an the right line.

K: Political officer ar samething.

M. Attaché?

I: in Doug's case, this man, who tater became his close friend, and with
whom | frequently corresponded, was | think by birth Polish and | think by
citizenship Czech. He was the boss, the political boss. And one day ne
came inta the operating theatre, where Doug had made a totally new
method of getting the wounded quickly in. He came into the theatre and he
found that Doug had arranged that the arriving casualties should be
latelled with numbers. And the numbers were to read 1,23 4, in the order
of urgency of operation. Sc¢ the most urgent person was labelled 1 and
Doug didn't inguire. He took number 1. And the next person was number 2
ar{&iriegi he Czech)? came in ahd said, "Look here Johnny, you're not
aoing to do this.” And Doug said, “why not?" He said, “That man is a
prisoner. You're not going to start number | with a prisoner. why don't you
start with our chaps first?" And Doug said, "No, | won't and | refuse and if
you ingist, I'm going heme tomorrow. And I'm explaining to you that the

e



#

reasons that brought me here are the same reasons which will make me kW
aperate on that prisocner first because he 1s in the most urgent neec of
salvalion. And you can say what you 1ike and if you continue, I'm going
home." Full stop. Kriegl went away. Kriegl was g very great person. Next
morning he came back to Doug and he said, "Doug, | take 1t aii back. I'm
very sorry. Stay and do what you say.” Now that took a lot of doing. He
wes & very rigid, not rigid, committed Communist and he knew that Doug
wasn't, Doug had made ...spelt it out, wheéh he came, from what group he
came and why he was there. And he said, " wouldn't be here if | didn't
think that this was worth it." And Doug always operated then on the more
urgent. .

K. That's a wonderful story. ,

1 show you the obituary. [oLefe»L ]L'v DnT i Pbr_i‘)

End of tape.




=i
I

- -ain s

'i. |'||'.

=

Frr
Tik

EFIEf Hi







the Academic Press has been negligent with the book and that it should be
reissued. Then there is a discussion of Helen Conethcoe” and her party, Lo
which Kari was invited and a fellow named Turton, an anthropologist at
the School of Oriental Studies, whose name Margie recognized and whom
Helen wished to introduce to Kari.)

P

: :
Qmuw Tess did not know Karli in the way that we knew him. But of

course she knew Karli and she may have very intaresting things to say. But
certainly you should see her at all costs.....By the way the flat was
provided for her when she retired. what happened was she didn't retire
because nobody could possibly keep all the. So what they did was, she
retired of course, and then they moved everything, all the files into her
flat. And there they sit. And she keeps it going in a Kind of way from
there.

K: What was the organization she worked for?

I: The Society for the Protection of Science and Learning, usually known
as S.P.SL. But of course she alse ran..The Society for Yisiting Scientists
and she had a beautiful house in Piccadilly where all visiting scientists,
inciuding by the way Joseph Needham, used to fetch up to meet. And she
ran that also. But the thing she ran for years and years..(was the SP.SL.)
The Society for Yiziting Scientists was & separate organizaiion and she
ran it a15ﬂ .ﬂﬂl kinds of pﬂuple not }uat re*’ugﬂr used to meet there. But

e

academics. And EI"!E can Lell you...

K: Oh she told me such incredible stories which | would Tike tD persuade
her to tell us again because |'d want them on the tape. A whole story on
Szilard and stories from Yienna and from Switzerland. This is after
getting scientists out of Nazi and Fascist Eurcpe.

I Szilard's first coniact was with Donald. IT'was Donald...Donald was the
first person to meet Szilard. | have a 1ot of things to tell you. | think
Tessie's stories would make a good background, if not more than
background. And | suggest that you talk to her in her flat because it's very
nice and she's very happy there. But she won't feed you......{etc.) She is
today, this very day, she's very sad. Today she was at the funeral of the
person o whom she was closest in ail this academic outfit.

K: Wha was Lhat?

I: Gretta Berken?, who was the wife of the Master of Peterhouse and she .
K: Berken? was that her name,

}: His name. But her name vwas, | think, 8 German name. | can't remember.
But Tessie will tell you. She is today at that funeral, She (Gretta) died
suddenly and Tessie was terribly upset and Tessie is today at that funeral
in Cambridge. She was the woman, who while Tegsie..This woman dealt
with the children at the same time that Tessie dealt with the adults. |
thirk she was a German refuges. Tessie will tell you. Now there's an
interesting thing for you to know about this. There was recently, quite
recentiy, she'll tell you about i1, quite a long television programme put on




oy the BEC about “wonderful academics acquired and gained as cilizens for
this country.” Most of them were people, who had gone through Tessie's
hands, people who are now regarded as a great asset. Tessie handled most
of them. MNow, somebody, a man called Robin {Bustig?) that Tess can tell
you about, has got some pull in the BBC. And he thought the programme
wasn't good encugh, and so did we and so did Tessie. And so0 theyre very
anxious to do a better and more complete one. (Doorbell..Chitchatetc)
Now 1 have not done anything sbout the Cornfords.

K: Yes | have a postcard from them this morning. No problem

I: You should see the Cornfords.

K: | have been in correspondence with them...| very much want to see
them.

I: Now Kenneth Muir, is an absolutely key person. (There follows @
discussion of arrangements for the visit to KM) Now Kenneth, just so you
know, 15 doing an ensrmous amount of work. He i$ transiating Calderon.
He is reissuing his Shakespeare notes. He is working harder than he ever
worked in his whole life, non-stop. Kenneth lost, very suddenly, his anly
daughier. Katharine died of leukemia, very suddenly, and Kenneth was
sbsolutely shattered. And as you know, he is & very reserved person. He
wrote us a letter, when she died, and said "I have only to say that she was
the best human being that | ever knew." He was broken and he set to work
to do more work than he had ever done before. You ask Kenneth one
question - Kenneth what things are you now working on? You will De
astonished if he tells you. He is doing it non-stop. Therefore | was very
surprised when he said "Oh yes send Kaii to me."... Now the things you can
learn most about - He was a professor of English in Liverpool for many
years. He was cne of the leading members of the Christian Left. During
part of that period, he was the editor of The Leeds Citizen. He has kept 8
total file of his articles in The Leeds Citizen. Many of them were
exprassions of the discussions in the Christian Left and many of them,
without any doubl, were inspired by the times we spent with Karii. So
Kenneth in The Leeds Citizen was not only & grest success in Leeds, people
actually read it, but, of course, he was & great success in the sense that he
was an enormous strength to the Christian Left. So that's Kenneth. { had
imagined, because he is in Birkenhead, that you would take & little journey
up to see dear beloved Brian Ireland. Because he is not very far away Now
Brian, | have a letter from Brian, even since he had this attack. He was in
hospital. They've allowed him to go home. He has ta keep absoluisly
quigt. (Discussion of whether and how to arrange visit with Brian) He
lives just outside of Lancaster, in a cottage with his wife. His family are
now scattered. One daughter is rather powerful on the administration side
of the BBC. Another daughier is a very socially awars social worker. And
the third daughter lives in Italy and is in (can't make out) as & secretary
for the British Embassy, | think. .. His wife Mary was with me in the P.1.D.
during the war. SR

K: Tell me vhat happened to Mary Muir?




l: Mary died of leukemia...

K. & fong time agofy

|- It must be now...Mary was a key figure../t must be now six years ago.
she was with me here in London, staying with me not very long, vhen it
was discovered how bad she was. They couldn't save her. She died in
Liverpool and of course that was very hard on Katherine too. And Katherine
died of leukemia also. Do you know this? - Leukemia 15 going up and up in
all the areas which is anuwhere near (Discussion of leukemia and
Thatcher's policy toward hospitais and Frances Pym’s recent book and rifts
within the Conservative Party. } .Certainly there is a very large section
of the Conservative Pariy whom Karli would have described as the
“intelligent right”. (More discussion of Pym's book.) ..The other thing is,
there was in the Christian Left at least one, if not several, devoted
Communists of whom Douglas McLean was one. He was the Communist
sitting in the Christian Laft. His work was induden's Dpress. He was also
a great friend of Kenneth Ingram, who was a member of the Christian Left.
Now Kenneth Ingram, whom | knew very well, was dead some time ago. But
Mac's friendship was then largeiy with Kenneth ingram although Kenneth
was not a Communist. Kenneth Ingram was a wonderful person. Anyway
that's anather story. One day, long, long ago, when the very first
investigations about interplanetary travel began to be faintiy murmured,
must have been about 1915, and one day Kenneth ingram, who was very
modest and very, very undemonstrative, began to taik about this to me.

And he said, "Well, I'm a member of The Interplanetary Travel Society.”
and | said, "Ohl™ | said, "Why?" "Well,” he said, "1t might happen.” So | said,
"Yes, | know it might happen but what about you?” "well,” he said, "I'm
going to book & seet.” So | said, "what do you mean, Kenneth? Are you
zerigus?” He said, "0f course, iI'm serious. |f we get the first
interpianstary journey, ! want to be on it.” So i locked at him and | said,
"But Kenneth you might never get off again.” He said, "Oh | don't mind.”

S0 | said, "Do you mean it7" He said, "Ireni just think of the experience of
getting off this pianet.” That was Kenneth Ingram and of course nobody
knew he was like that. Bui Mac was a very active Communist indeed and he
joined the Christian Left and he was really one of the most active people
in that group. His Herrkunft? as they say in German, was very, very
different from all, from everybody eise’s because, unlike Donald who was
also a Scot he had a very poor and miserable youth in Scotland. His view of
Scotland was the exact opposite of Donsld's view. Donald had the most
glorious chiidhood, the most happy set of circumstances, and the most
encouraging general background history. Mac had the opposite and to tell
you the truth | don't even know the details. He was very much a Scot, he
was very able and he was a very active Communist indeed. He didn't leave
until /56. Mac married a person whom I've only lately got to know very
well. He married her because he met her in the war. He was in the war.
Her name is Gene and she's a lovely person. She is also extremely radical.
I've never asked her, because | don't want 1o, whether she was a mamber of
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a party but | think she was, Anyway she and Mac are a great couple.

They've got two boys, both of them very radical. One of them worked for & W\
very long time with Hobsbawm and he is not now in Londen. He's teaching

History. His sons are lan and Keith. Keith was with Hobsbawm and i3 now

teaching and lan i3, | think, in Luftsborough teaching at the techmcal

college and he's also leftish and I've never met him. _.But the point 15 that

Mac was throughout the time that it existed and until people began to

disappear in the war and so on, Mac was in the middle of the Christian

LEfL

K: And how did he get into thaty was he...

I: well that's an interesting story. He came through another group with

which he'd been in touch and he came into our group which was very

left-wing Christian on the whole, because of the very qood pecpie in the

top Christian movement and the Auxiliary, who were running it. -And we

got on because we had always belonged. My access to the Christian Left

qoes back to William Morris and Donald and my father who at the end of hig

life was voting Labour, being a Methodist parson. So | came from a very

different background. Karii, beloved Karli, whom Donald met first. Denald

was the person who first met Szilard......

K: Donald met him before my father met him?

|: | think Donald was the first person to talk to Szilard about where to go

and what to do.

M. And Donald met Karli before you did?

|: Donald met Karli long before | was married, before | went to Yienns,

which was in 1921, because Karli and llona were both in Vienna a3

refugees. ilona was surviving, God knows hovy, on nothing. And she went 10

the (SohweattsyaTdr) . Donald's description to me of what happened, was : ,
as follows: Karli came to see Donald having heard about his attitude ?. frdes ‘j‘“ﬁ“”:"')
who said he wanted to ask Donald if he could help Hona. '
K. Dicki vwent to see Donald...

I: Dicki heard sbout Donald and his work with students and his work for

refugees __Donald was, fortunately for him, based in the University whih

gave him & big room. {Hersalldreizig?} University of Yienna. 5o Karli went

Lo see him and as far as | know Karli saw him in (Hersalidreizig?) -}ng

K: What year would that be?

|: 1920. Before | was there. And Karli told Danald about Hona and asked if

he could do something for her. That was the beginning of the story, The

rest, roughly speaking, you know. Bul interesting is this, during that time

Donald saw Karli and got a Yot of help from Karli, because Karli, of course,

could explain to Donald the (7) of political situations about which Donald

a) knew nothing and b} not naturally a political person, had to learn about.

K: Danald was at that time with what organization®

I: Densld yas there on his own because he had started with the Quskers iy
and while he was with the Quakers in France, the Quakers asked him g_icﬁ““},;xgjf*-’
whether he would go to Vienna because they were starting an (sktione?)in  ° 7
Yienna. Donald said yes. He left France, and he went Lo Vienna, and he was

T e I



taken te Singerstrasse who was {7) There the Quakers functioned and did
all the things they did and Donald with them inciuding, | think, Journeys 1o
the {Balkan3) for food and you mention it. This was before | got there.
Donald, however, began to realise that, among other things the peopie who
were 1osing out were the students. And there were various, not very good,
student {gktiones?) going on. To cut & long story short, Doneld said to the
(luakers he would like to mave in and do that, as it were, on his own. S0
what he did was he got into touch with the goed o1d student movement and
the good oid Student International Federatioh. This was a Christian
organization. And it was very vigorous.
K. 4nd it was called The Student internationa) Federation.
|- The World Student Christian Federation. in this country it was simply
cailed the Student Christian Movernent. And it was al that time, & very
widespread, very 1iberal, very numerous organization. | was a secretary,
Donald was a secretary. 1t was a great organization. And a really
left-wing priest like William Tempie, who became Archbishop of
Canterbury, | could give you dozens.. David Cairns of the Aberdeen
University, all the top people that mattered, so to speek, in liberal 3
thinking wera supporting the Student Christian Movement. The :
conferences were very large. They happened all the time in (7) That's
where everybody met. So Donald turned to the student movement but he
got another helper, who was the deughter of the great Professor Murray,
Gilbert Murray the great classicist. That man's duughler was Agnes Murray
“and she was doing some sort of a mad trek round Eurcpe including Alssnia
| think on horseback. And Donald got into iouch with Agnes Murray and she
motivated her father, and Gilbert Murray made the very first move in
Oxford te help Donald about these students. And then Donald formed his
own committee and his own organization, (Hersalldreizig?) And in that
room he collected s small commitiee. | have & picture. And in that
committee he made a rule that in every {HDT}@H in every University group,
everywhere he went in Austris, they would make their own committee and
it had ta be, they had to do it. They had to find who the students were that
needed help and he, Donald, would have to rely on these people. S0 that was
the way it happened and it was, therefore, called The Austrian Student
Relief. And | have a very fing, little, tiny, Ell:il:r‘iettll:lf.fk They were very
poor but they gave him this little pocketbook and it had a very ting siiver
stamp on it and 1t just seid "A5.R." Austrian Student Relief and very,very
soon, almost before he put it in his pocket, of course it was too narrow.
The Czechs were wanting help, the Hungarians and then the next thing was
wauld brex ga:l o I?Jq fa in ihe famine. 5o D::-nald ch ﬁngeﬁ tm:- rlir‘uu of }*

S.R. for many, mang gears And he 5t that time of Course, hurtt up haa
ir1==-ﬂ*j*=*ni:: with Karli. Now, at the end of that period, it was already so
widespread and quite irmpossible for Donald. _and the Americans had been
brought in because ...in America, certainly then and | think now, what we
would have called radical studenis who were liberal students. Went
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through the Y.M.C.A. They didn't have a separate organization. So Donaid
then got into touch with the various American student Y.M.C.A. groups and
by degree it grev very big and | can remember all kinds of extraordinary
things that happened | musin't begin but one thing will tell you the story
very quickly. One day Donald asked for anything not just money, clothes or
books, anything. And ene day there arrived in VYienna a huge wooden case,
very big, heavy, wooden from America. ‘well what was in 1t? 20 we
hastily began to unpack it. It was full of very good, partially used shoes.
So we went down to try to distribute the shoes. There wasn't & single pair
of shoes that anyone could wear, Why? Because the Americans never
walked and the Austrians do nothing but walk..They have narrow feetl
because they do not walk. There was this huge box of the most beautiful
shoes and nobody could wear them.

M: Ireni when did you come 10 Austria®

I: We got married inJuly 721, And | went straight to dustria

K: And you married in England?

I: | was married in Golder's Green, By my father in a tiny, tiny Methodist
church. By the way the Methodists are now, and I'm not surprised, are the
mosi active church people against nuclear arms. My father, who married
us said in the service more or less what we asked him to say. And later |
went to look at this little broken thing, it was a hut, because they were
gaing to build a church so they had put up a little hut. | went to look for it
one day and they'd put up a garage.

tnd of tape.
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irene: Extraordinary letlers? looking back on them.

Kari: Yes. Letters are so useful espacially when they're dated.

I: That's 38 not 28

K. Yes 38.

I: 1 was in America.

K: You were in Americay

I: Yes | made two spesking tours in America.

K. Oh you dig?

I &nd | have somewhere my lecture leaflet. This was In? 3G and Karll was
here in the middle of all that was happening. I'm trying to find some af
them. Kari gyou must understand if you go through all this that i put it
together as semething to be shifted from A to B. So 1t's not going to be
all ih date order.

K: ‘what were you deing in America?

I 1 was giving a series of lectures under the segis of what then was
called the League of Nations Association .on the 2ast coast..and | have
some funhny stories, when we have time, to tell you about that. And | have 3
ieaflet and & photograph and headings of letters. | made some dreadful
faux pas with americans. Now here is Karli.

K: May | go back a moment to who.. Thig is Leonard Schiff.

I: That is Leonard Schiff who went, | think, te Indis and then returned to
Britain; A very big strong member of the Christian Left, left-wing
Anglican.

K: He was an Anglican too?

I: Yes and if you look again Kari at Christianity and the Social Revolution..
you will find there that there was a strong left-wing Anglican group in the
church and Thaxted, the wonderful little church in Thagted, had a parson
‘called Conrad Noel who has his article in Christianity and the Social
Revolution. He was a very "naive”, absclutely basic, teft-wing Christian.
Thaxted, this little village church in Thaxted, became widely known in the
left Anglican circles and Lechard Schiff was one of the weighlier members
af that group.

K- Where is Thaxted? . c
- Thaxted? Not far from where the {TGWF? are,
K. Neford. 2

I: I'm not entirely sure..{.7}

K: {7)._East Anglia.

i: And it became famous because of its.

K. and this now. . this

I: This man lredell uou have to know about.

K. How do you spell it?. ..

I Iredell, He was known as Father iredell.. Up at Barnsbury Anglican
Church, still stands and still functions, he wore himself out in the service
of that church. And he was extremely left-wing; And we used to go often
weekly, for discussion groups in Barnsbury, ta which people likg Jdohn
Strachey went, from the Labour Party John Strachey made spesches there.




Tredolo

.égﬂ'_ﬂl was there. | was there. Doug went there. All kinds of people.. And \hg
this man was the heart of il and he invited MNehru... | forget which year but :
it would be easily established, before the war. He invited Nehru on his
vigit to this country to join in that church and in that service and | sat
there w&tching Nehru come in at the main door and walk right down

through this great church as part of the Anglican Christian service; Yery
left-wing. lredell wore himself cui and he imaﬂg died and | do nat know,
because | haven't had time to discover, whether anything resulting in that
particular church remains. But he was very weall known at that time
K: This would have been approximately 28, | think.
I: Yes it was '38, | think, but 1 will find cut. This is a letter. [t's come
adrift but | think it's like that and it's of great interest to Karli and his..
Maybe it goes on here because judging by this mark of the clip..
K: Yes, it goes on here. This would be the Nationaloekonomie und
Philosephie. This would be 1940, when you were. These page references
refer to the German edition.
l: This is what | believe. | would have to check it up. Also, at the same
time, Doug was writing his book about Spain. ..And this letter of
Kenneth's.. Well | have to track it all down.. This letter of Kennelh's was
written at the same time.
K: This is Kenneth Muir?
e
K. 1940,
I: Now this is also Kenneth at the same time. | think I'm right but my
mernory is defective. | was trying very hard to put English onto
Nationaioekonomie und Philosophie. (?) .. just rough. Have a lock. | think

“Thal's what this is all about. This is written to Donald but at the very end
it's addressed as if to Dicki. Paul Tiltich..lived there and | met him there
with Reinhold Niebuhr.

- what happened with Reinhold Niebuhr? .

| Reinhold Nisbuhr was & very influential the:::lagmﬁfﬁ# Christian
running, 1 think actually runhing, the thegiogical seminary in New York.
His wife was English. They invited me because | was _.speaking to come
and stay with them.

K: Was he an American or a European?

I He was an American. With him and with his wife was staying Paul
Tillich, the great Paul Tillich, from Germany and | had an interesting day
or two there. Here jou are. 'written is to Donald and Karli. Karli was very
much interested in him. And this man was so prestigious and | remember
saying to him Yes, you're a great prophet of the Oid Testament but why
don’t you read the New Testament?” The poor man was absoiutely
horrified. Of course, he was a great Christian. | remember saying to him
‘A great prophet from the 01d Testament he is but why don't you read the
Mew Testament? | said. Poor Nisbuhr was horrified.

K. He wasn't interesied in the New Testament?

I: Mo, but he was more like a justice man from the Jewish Dackgruunu




K: But he vrasn't Jewish?

i: Mo, he was of German extraction but | don't know how long he'd been in
america.. | think you should read Moral Man and lmmoral Society,

K. That was his book. Yes we will have to have a look at it.

(?)

K: Tell me, when you have statements such as this ‘Explaining the
Christian Left to the Auxiliary would Dicki have participated in drafting
thes

I 1 think probably in all of them.

K: In some of them..

I tn mast of them.. In one way or another either on the spot or post hoc.
Now this | think is interesting. You should glance through it. The Student
Christian Movement was only for students. If you weren't a student you
were out. But EIEE&USE S0 marrg penpte couldn't bear to lose touch iiﬁeq

Wi ne]pe:ﬁ Us tu:- survive, (7. 3T1sswguan Tatlow and T_hE‘b’:' peuple Moy
whean we wera beginning to make this new group, our support and cur base
was really with these peupre The chap | tried to remember, Hugh Martin
was one of them.. he was an extreme pacifist who hoped he vould go to the
front and get shot. But he was the person who found the school Tor you
and..(7) He was the person who found the house or helped with 11, It was
like that. Mow these people had their own ambience. being older than the
students. And they were the people in whose body we began to make
trouble, so to speak. So now | think you should quickly Took through this
it will tell you.

If{_' This document called "Auxiliary Christian Left'.

- E‘rg t'm‘s time we hﬁd & name. The name was nut thristian Le”r It was

_.5*udenf Fhr1 T!Erﬂ Hmement

K: You think that this d::rl:umer'lt was influenced by Karh or written by

Karli.

|: This document was torn up. it hasn't got & date. But it must have been

round about the beginning of the Wwar or just before.

K. Not much eartier?

I No.

K: 1936%

I: Mere like.,

K. "353-"3a07

|- ¥es. Here is @ statement made, no doubt, with Karli in it. And at the

bottom it says 'Ask John about this.' At such points John would be brought

n.

K: This statement is called "Affirmations’. And again the dale would be

approximately "35-"36. ARE

|: Look here. Here's ‘37... A Meeting of Christian Left Groups’ of which we
ol

were onhe, : ~

K: 1937. Father John Emr_tf-:eif?f He was a great fellow.




I He was an extraordinary man.

K: If he dropped John, because he was too radical, thal would have been
before the war?

I: Yes

K: Now Kenneth Muir said yesterday that it was my father who introduced
John MacMurray to Marx. 1S thal correct?
T T would very much doubt it. John was a very widely read..But certainiy
it was Karli who turned John towards lhe essay which he contributed,

K. Tothe Medium{?)"

|- Wo, | don't think it was Karli who introduced him to Marx. But | think
Karli enmeshed him in this.. This point having been reached. It is quite
clear that John on the revolutionary Christian interpretation and Karl Marx
on the philosophical interpretation of his own, were very close. Karli used
to say that it iooked as though John aimost preceded Karl Mary (7).

K: This is Kenneth Ingram yoeu're speaking about”

|. Yes. Kenneth ingram, who joined this group, he wrote books about
Christianity and leftism. One was called Christianity and the Left

K: What was he- a minister of the church or.?

oMo | don't know what profession he was. But he was obviously a very..
but he lived with his widowed mother and was, 50 10 speak, a student of
gverything.

K. And he was older than the others?

I: No. He must have been about the same age as Karli. He would sit on
everything. He was in the Great Peace Council, the National Peace Council,
the Christian Left, the Socialist (Union?) which he helped to start. He was
in everything

K. Was he a pacifist?

I: He was g terribly modest..

K. was he a pacifist?

|- | don't think he was an extreme pacifist. Mo he wasn't because he yas
in the war. But he was, well, the other kKind of pacifist. So this is him. He
wrole a memorandum on A Christian Left’.

K: Sohe was a sort of secretary to the Christian Left.

|: Yes he really was in at the beginning.

K: Kenneth ingram - This ‘Memorandum No. 1" would have preceded what
later became the Pycombe Corner Group.

|-Yes Ithinkso -~ o

K. This was a very early stage of it.

I: Just preceded

_.-> \\ K Eieanor Ullman. Is she still living?
[l s

I: Oh very much so. Her name’s Helen.

K. She's in New York?

I- Well she's in New York for work but for the moment she's in Yermont.
And she wrote that long, long fetter, which you read, expiaining how she




found it all very difficult politically. She was not really an active \C\
palitical peraon but she had been thireatenad by the MoCarthy peaple and it
was she who said to me 'l think I'm going to be the first refugee from
America.

K: She was in England than before the war?

I: She was in England at the time of the outbreak of the war. She was the
person who took Don as o little boy with his gas mask to be evacuated
from London. So Karli did this and | saw to it that Eleanor should read it.
she onty read 1t Lo the extent of 1h the end saying I'm not In1t’. Dut that's
Karii.

K: ..with his writing all over it. That's very interesting.

I: The Auxiliary Christian Movement’ _.the flag {?) _.and then you know the
emblem. Unfortunately this hasn't got a date. And it was of the same date
roughly and it was a letter to the Times and it's extremely interesting. We :
sighed it. Kennath Muir, Mary Muir, Fannie (7), Marjorie Young, Eﬁ Barbara, (M W )
I really can't. Kenneth Ingram. Not Karli. As far as | remember he wasn't :

even involved in this discussion about the emblem. Or perhaps he was..
K. And he just didn't want to $ign. | can't imagine him signing anything
about an emblem. Couldn't imagine it. And this was about 19387

I: 1t was about the time that our flag went in the march. You know what
date that was.

K Yee a8

I: Write it down.

. Now | want to get exacltly what 1t 15 you transiated. It was calied
‘MNationaloskonomie und Philosophie™?

| That's the title of the essay.

K: And that's translated into English as what.. "Philosophic and Ecohomic
Manuscripts"?

I: There are many translations npw but under what heading..| have not
followed. | don't know. But | can show you . .Unfortunalely they came to
us from Switzeriand in two bittle volumes. The thing that Karli vanted us
to follow, because he said it was abselutely basic, was in the first .~
volume. The first volume, like a fooi, | lent and it never came home again.
But | can show you the second volume which is exactly like the first in
appearance and ihe issue, the whole issue was teken out of Germany and
taken to Switzerland, so Karli told me, and we got our copy by writing o
awitzerland. ; :
K: And the date was before the war.

111 show gou, 've got it ...Yolume No. 1 was & Dit thinner. It wasn't so
'~ fat. Thiz is Yolume No. 2. Karli made us get it from Switzerland but the

| oniy one he made us hold on to was the original essay in the first voiume
| And here ig, | think he gave it 1o me, ..the French version.

' K: The publication daie is 1937. Paris, 1937 This French one is called
Yolume 6 "Economie Politique et Philosophie idéologique Allemagne”,




Landshut and Mayer; And this is the French transiation ..of
"Natiohalokonomie und Philosophie”,

{ I: Now Karli, of course, who (7Y . how much, he'd studied both volumes;
| but what he tried to rub into our heads was that the oniy one that really

f
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mattered was the basic philosophic position, was that ghe essay, which he
made us stick Lo c:upr and over agam Then h*e said e'fergthmg that he did
after that was in the nature Elf | toid you s0.

K- ‘who said that?

|: Karh.

k. That everything Marx said after that..

|- | don't repeat verbatim because | don't remember his exact words but
the meaning of what he said was "Kapital” was only like saying ‘Well when
| wrole this basic document, | can only now say my whole "Kapital® was
another | told you so. Karli firmly believed, thal Mars never departed,
whereas the Russians | gather from Karli and from other people, said 'On
well this vwas early philosophical . things. It wasn't basic.

K: | know the dispute.

I: | think I'm right in saying, | got it alsc from Karli, that for thirteen
Jears the Russians never publicly acknowledged and certainty never let
come to light that document.

K. Now here: "The "Economie Politigue et Philosophie”, which 15 herg
publighed in the French translation for the first time, was written Dy Marx
probably towards the end of February 1846, That's before the Deutsche
Franzosiche Jahrbuch. . (German) When Marg wrote the (German) ..was
1931.

 Was what?

K: That the Swiss version came out. .in 18931 in Zurich, 1__3_1

|: This i3 not the Swiss version.

(Garbied)

K: Here you say Someone has my Yolume 1 of the | andshut and Mayer
tﬁm of Mary’ early works.” And you put 1933,

. ‘When | was translating it..that was in our Christian Left group in
F'g::ornt-e Corner. And it was done from the first volume of this.

K: Soit’s the first volume of Karl Mars Hlﬁm'ﬁ:rhﬁ ""ate-‘mhsrma

think we may have this at home. | will absolutely look it up.
(German)..Leipzig .and would you believe there is no date on it.

|: Often very difficult to be sure what theyre trying 1o say.

K. This is a French version and it came in 1937

l: | got it from somebody. | think Karll gave it to me | dont know who
gave it to me but semebody did.

( some garbied)

|: Now what have we got here..Well this bit by bit transiation was then
used bit by bit in the group.

rl

K. S0 you translated it then discussed it,

|- {Someone. Name not on the tape) was a lecturer in history in Yienna,




Jewish. He was, we later Iearned, a very great hero but he looked like
nathing, a littie man. He gave me a few lessons once in history in Yiehna. 'ln}—-\
He was swept up by the Nazis. He was long time in a camp. He finally got
out. | can't remember how. He came to Pycombe Corner and we took care
of him. This essay, which he wrote | believe while he was in Pycombe
Corner, Karli was deeply interested to have, to read and was deeply
interested in it. The short story is that when he came to us he used to get
up out of his bed, which we had to put in the dining room because we didn't
have any other space, about five o'cleck in the moming and he would get up
and sit ih an armchair 11ke this, with his feet together, and he didn't move
at all until Donald went in with a cup of tea. He would drink the cup of tes
and then he would continue to sit motioniess for a long, long time and we
discovered, we didn't know ....that the reason was that he was in extreme
pain from his feet. And you would just read this and you would think (7}
about it. Karli was deeply impressed. Now | want you when you've got
time, before | put it away, to read what he wrote because that was the
point.

{Garbled but | think lrene repeats the man's name and the title of the
article at this point)

K: A bibliography of the writings of John MacMurray compiled by Albert N,
Rephew ina journal called Listening Yol. 10, Spring, 1975, Lisieningis &
British journal but it's gone for ten years so it must be that one can find it
in a library. Otherwise ask Michael. wWhat is Michael's name?

i: Michael Fielding...

K: "Maierialism and Religion” by Joseph Needham, fellow of King's College,
in & series, Affirmations: God in the Modern World, N. F. Benn Ltd., London,
1929, 1 shilling net, 32 pp. Look there are references to Collingwood. It
looks very, very interesting. Peter Grant has since disappeared. "Teachers
of Marxism”... This is the SCM in the 1970s.

I: Yes this is late. This is recent. Here's a thing that he gave me - "For
Palitical Stance in Student Keferm”. 1've got two of them 50 you have one.
But | never found therm again and he has got material which | gave him.

K: Too bad. Now this is Peter Grant. ..Dr. Joseph Needham reprinted from
the Spectator, Oct, 20, 1936, "Christianity and Communism - The Commaon
Ground” Now this iz quite a lot later from that pamphiet you just showed
me. Oh ges, it was convincingly argued in the book Christianity and the
Social Revolution, that Communism has alwaus been an integral, perhaps

the eszsential, element in Ehr‘iﬂiﬁﬁitg," This iz a Yery iﬂtEi’E!S'f.H'lg
statement.

|: Christian Socialists

K: Christian Socialists.

I: Michael Fielding has recently been at a Christian Socialist conference,
quite recently. There are guite & few groups.

K: But this is an old one. Thiz is a 19302 one, And here it shoews you all
the different Christian Left Groups that were The Socialist Christian
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League, The Fellowship of Reconciliation, The Felloweship of Creative
Service, Christian Peace Front, The Left Book Club, SCM, Christian Left -
various denominations, Methodists, Unitarians, Baptists, anglicans,
Congregationalists. Why no Romans? No Roman Catholics?

I:_There were no Roman Catholics at all.

K: Not & single Roman Catholics in all. 1sn't that extraordinary.

|- Even we, and .we took everything, did not have a Roman Catholic.

K. isn't thet extraordinary. .. (Mexwell?) was o priest.

I: He was Christian Left. 5

K: But an Anglican priest, not & Romar.

| But if they have very high ritual they call themselves ‘Father’

K: Theyre very similar.

i Gregory Yiastos, who tried to make Karli write 1o {Maclver) and who
bejonged to the Christian Left and who is now somewhere in America, Karl
Polanyi, Jack (Poleril1?) another High Anglican lefi-wing priest, very
well-known, Timothy (Room?) of whom ['ve told you, John Lewis who
edited, partly edited Christianity snd the Socisl Revolution, ..

K: Now what was he (7).

I:,t;_..memt:er of the Communist Party.

K. John Lewis?

I: Dr. John Lewis.

iK: what sort of Doctor was he? Theology?

|- | think, philosophy. | don't know for sure. He was very Jewish and very
Communist,

K: He was Jewish’

- 1think he was. .| had an awful argument with him ence. Now | can't
remember what it was about. It had something to do with the British
Jews, the position of Jews in British sociely.

K: Kenneth Muir said yesterday, because | asked him if there were any
Jews in this, he said there was only one and thal my father disliked him &
1ot and distrusted him because he was a Communist agent.

I; Jews in what?

K- In the Christian Left And it was the man that married Jean McConnell.
- Alfred Cannon. He married Jean McConnell. He was a poor chap

K: for some reason my father didn't Tike him.

- He was very well-meaning, Jewish gentleman. He wasn't an atiractive,
easy person to get along with. And | think Karh ididnd Tike 7} him. | used
ta feel really sorry for him. ..Christian Left (Review? Garbled) We dida
1ot of pretiminary work to launch a survey of the working class in this
country. Of course, we never did it. | mean we were scatiered long before

. we got around te such a thing. ?:f,x’
_K: Soit was & project but it never got.. ,ﬂ»*"“u
I: You are going to keep this. __That we should try tocarryout a - ﬁ:.f 1L
i whi nds i . 8 e { bt
{mentions a name which sounds likedFuetloguotes) sort of thing pr Qor brekts

f= a0 e [l

{Truedequolesy discussed it with us. Working cless culture in Vienna and = . gose -
"we were going to apoly Lo Rothschild for a grant to do it And in fyeri=s )
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preparation for that, we wrote up a 1ot of stuff with the help of 7 ’}-
(Froetequetes) about the working class in Yienna. Thel was 8 SuEREANS W e
never got because we ran away from Hitler and we never got it. But
somewhere, buried in this house, are the pigces of paper that we prepared
for that survey of the working c18ss in Yienna. And the only that ever
avantuated from Donald or me or both of us was that little thing you've
got. 1t never got further in the Auxiliary than {becoming us?). | don't
think the Auxilisry movement ever carried this out but it might be
interesting to you to see what they were talking about. That was the kind
af thing...

k. This is a training weekend within the Auxiliary movement.

| We had training weekends. Here was one labelled Professor Donald
{Mayer) talking at what we called a training weekend. That is to say
getting ready to be a Christian Leftie. The next one, Mos. 1 through 2, the
next one, "Notes from a Christian Left Training weekend - Christian
Criticism of the Social Order™. That's Karll.

K: | would like a copy of that.

|- | daresay that was Kenneth, .. ‘Well it 1s true yp to @ point and true for
sorne people but as far as |, persenally am concerned, the whole Christian
Left idea is much earlier, of course, from my earlier years. So that people
would disagres with me about when the idea of the Christian Left began.
K. But some people like to date it to these (07 Camps.

I: Yes. /

K: Thats what_in fact Macky started with the {072 Camps.

I Mac? Yes. Mac belenged to another of sych camps run by 8 man called
Morman Ridyard. Norman Ridyard was not (07) Camp he was just another
such camp, another such group. And the (Q) Camps, the two () camps
would be regarded by some people as the very beginming of the Christian
Laft. But | would not 5o regard them though they were very important..

K- On this tape | recorded some of the explanations which Ireni gave as we

were going through the three boses of Chrsitian Left material and on the

remainder of the tape, | will record, from my notes, any additional 3
information. There is a phote of Grehan in a May Day parade in London %f;gﬁ"fw’
carrying the Christian Left flag with Leonard Schiff behind ol thamoh ———
whom she igentified as Father Iredell in front. But lreni then later thought

that perhaps he was in fact Father John Grosser | think, he is Faiher e P aso
Grosselmyself, @ Fairfield was the General Secretary of the ﬂ.uxﬂiargﬁ%ﬂ’ o
Moverment and the address of the Auxilisry Movement was in Annandale, 2o
North End Road g Golders®LGreen, Concerning lreni's rough translation of

the Landshut and Mayer', Leipzig edition of Nationalokonomie ung

Philosonhie, it was most remarkable. There are many drafts of Ireni’'s

translations, very carefully done. It is of course the work which we Know

as Ecanomic and Philosaphical Manuscripts (of 1844) end it does indeed

appear to be case that the German language volume, Trom which these
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translations were rmade by Ireni in London, wers published in Leip2ig,
probably in 1932 and were physically exported to Switzeriand, the Leipzig
publications, from whence they were obtained by the Christian Left. They
were hot published in Switzerland bul they were smuggled out 1o
Switzerland. With respect to the "Bulleting” and Polanyi's rele in the
“Bulleting”, Ireni said There were no "Bulleting” with which Karli had
nothing to do” But he was particularly concerned with, and, indeed,
drafted and wrote the '‘Bulletins', that is the ‘Christian Left Bulleting',
dealing with 1) Trotskyism, 2) The (WH#EE2 Study on the Early Works of
karl Marx, 3) Tha Bulletin titled ‘Russiag and the World'. The Bulletins
dealing with the Chartists were principally the work of Kenneth Muir and
the one advertised as "working Class Culture in Vienna® never
materialised. Instead there is a No. 7 which, however, deals with
Levellers and Diggers in the Cromwell period with Stanley (7). The project
of "working Class Culture in Yienna” is described on the tape. Regarding
the 1938 statement of the Christian Left, it would appear, incidentally,
that in about 1937 the Auxiliary Christian Left changed its name to the
Christian Left and it was at that time that a great deal of work was done
on drafting, so to speak, a Manifesto. The papers, which 1 have seen, the
documents in Ireni's possession shows that Karl Polanyl was intimately
concerned with the drafting of the group document and his corrections and
edits are to be seen a1l over these documents. The individuals concerned
with the foundation of the Christian Left were the two (Caspergs?), David
and Baranara (Casperg?), Kenneth and Mary Muir, Donald and Irene Grant,
Marjorie Young {now Reid), and this Kenneth Ridyard mentioned to me by
McClelland. There was & meeting of.in (Newforest?), maybe this is, in
fact, the O Camp. it's not guite clear whether these 0 Camps were in 19305
or in 1938, That has yet to be established. The 0 Camps, in any event,
seern to desl, according to frem, more wilh s0cial retations, questions of
sex and the freedom of lifestyles rather then ideology. ..The
documentation in lreni's possession...

End of tape. There does not appear to be anything on the other side.
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|- Now I'm going to begin at the end and qo backwards. /

K. Okay. S
| AL the end of discussions on the draft for the Christian Left, John wrote L
this very long letter. It is here. You must read it, but not now. But at the
end of the letter he said, {Paragraph Ne, 7 was considered unsatisfactory.
The memmbers who were there were instructed to write this commentary -
to re-write this cormmentary - and we were to suggest the wording. we
suggest the following wording. And | will read this psragraph).

K: This is written by John MacMurray. '

I Yes .Inone of the efforts to get a finished basis. "The task of the
Christian community is not to seve Christianity. it is to save the world

If it seeks to save it's own life, it will lose it. The life of a Christianity
community is one of freedom, equality and brotherhood. These are mere
words unless they are embodied in the structure of our human iife; snd the
avtension and realization over the whole figld of human life is the purpose
of Christianity. The economic, palitical relations of men &re not merely
\he basis of personal life. They are an inherent part of, and the criteria of,
its realitu. In our day the economic integration of humanity determines,
in very large measure, whal 1orms of parsonal life are possible at all. As
a result, it is no lenger possible Lo maintain, or to extend, personal life if
{7)Christianity demends of us, without a transformation of our existing
political and economic structure as & whole. It is Decause we realise that
acceptance or rejection of Christianity is at stake, in this sense, that we
commil ourseives io the entire struggle for socialism.” Now that was at
the end of the letter and what | want to say about it is this: John came
from a Presbylerian background, via his very liberal re-interpratation.
And his great central F9) was that there was no duality. A duahism iza
failure. From that, through the study of Mars, he came 10 whal you saw
written in his essay. Now that was the way that John developped and
happened, beginning with a very hard Presbyterian background, up to the
point where he was writing these books......{Titles; Karli, one of Karli's
main qrievance with John was ofi this point of no dualily

K. What do you mean by this?

I John's position and Karli's position, both coming from different
quarters, was that a dualism, in the idea that there was a division
between your materiai iife and your goals, between your ordinary
materialistic way of 1iving and your idealistic goais, were & non est. They
were ninilists. John came to it by what | just read out to you, from &
Christian positien, ending up with this essay on the young Marx. Karii
came, from the way that you know better than | do including Tolstoy, and
they both reached the same point of o dualist philasophical position 15 not
a position. it's & failure. Now this is very important because that is
where they met and where they agreed, by Lheir various ways on this one
point which was a Marxist point and a Gospel point. S0 when | was talking -
to these peopie recantly..

K. Caspeqgg, David and Barbara and...
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|: _.and Kenneth and Margaret Ridtey and all kinds of people of (?) it
became quite clear to me and now | have got facts; half a dozen or more
short statements of people who were members of the Christian Left about
how they ever came 1o be in it. They are so varied, so totally unlike each
oiher that | began to realise that | must take note in my head where it was
that these two great prophets, because we had two great prophets in our
group, where it was that they met and they {?). And it was at this point.
That was why John was so close to Karli on this point. Philesophy is of no
use 1f it doesn't actually change what you do. 5o i thought to myself,
while | was talking to ali these people and getting letters from them and
then trying to tell you and what | should have said to you at the-beginning,
I nov realise, 1¢ that, of course, those of us who were very closely
mumveu in kﬂrfr wnrkannna fmd whn knew John aﬂgwag since Gul:l kN0 s

B s

e

And this is iy pmn* | r‘nuﬂ l:le Meer!.j careful that angthmg said about thia
group of people does not make it seem as though the whole thing only
happened because Karli turned up. Because these people say to me how,

and ET:IW___ED said to me the other day, 1t's all very well but what about
John? And now we've got this magazine somewhere in America asking "So
what became of the radical MacMurray?” | just don't know what's going on
because I'm not in touch. But | know that some people want to say and
want us to be clear that this anti-dualist position was equally part and
parcel of them. And that it was like the young Marx thing and like John's
essay on why Christianity was of importance. And that if it went on just
doing 11's old stuff, it wouldn't make any difference. It would anly make a
difference, if it led people to refuse Lo be duglists. That's what | want you
to understand because if it is mentioned anywhere, then this should be
made very clear. From the Christian side, the movement was this way and
on the Marxist, liberal or Hiberal European side it was this way, but it met
at that point. And this thing, which you'll read tomorrov, the whaole letter
makes it quite clear. This is aJohn letter,

K: Yes, that is very useful.

I: I 'wrote it down here in a kind of disgram.

K. Yes well in a sense the diagram is what you have just told me.

I: But the Auxiliary Christian Left and what grew out of it, namely the
group that drew up the basis and that had a flag of which I've given you a
copy, that was the Augiliary Christian Left. And these people produced the
News Sheet. It was the basis with John MacMurray on the outside. They
went on to become, not the Auxiliary Christian Left, but just the Christian
Left and they produced the Bulletin. And that was & 1ater lol. And the

J:arﬂl., difference was that it was no Tonger under any official obligation for
anything to the Auxiiiary Movement. It was now separate. That's all It
didr't mean that the contacts didn't remain. But there was no
organizational connection anymore.
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thing and the Marxist thing. in this sense, you may say, they initiated the

K: Mow of all of the Auxiliary Christian Left steiements and of the
Bulletins, you told me that Karli had the main input really into the

i: He had the main input into the Bulletins in that, the first Bulletins, No.
1 and 2, were about the political considerations including the Trotskyist

Bulletins. /

Bulletins. But it does not mean, and this | must make clear, that they were
then committed to continue only these subjects of study They studied all
kinds of things, including early English history and all sorts of things. S0
in the sense that they were launched through Karli and because of Karli,
that is true. But in the sense that these people all regarded themselves as }\
somehow the disciples of a persan in @ group, that's not true. And anyway, \
I think | made it clear, by this diagram. Now because of that | want you to
take a look at this and | think it may supercede all kinds of things.
..As far as | can remember, there was nothing of anything missing, later
than this.
K: And that would be 1937
I: And that was John's letter. You see at this time when he wrote, it was
written to 'Dear Janet' That was a girl who looked after things when |

wasn't doing it. She's dead now. And he answered the letter and here it is
anﬁ the date is - Dec. 1937. So you can call it 37 to 38. That's what it is.
And | think you should read it and then if you vwant a copy....| think you need
a copy only to make it clear to whoever deais with this that because of my
enthusiasm end because of the fact that the two initial Bulleting were
Marxist, an impression I've got ‘round and | now know, that | am teaving
John out. | never meant that. That's only because of me talking to you.

..That is a picture of the New Forest back at the Q Camp. Now a lot of my
Christian Left peopte, inc luqu for 1nstant:e Barbara, for her the world
changed in the Q Camp. what happened ¢ afterwarda John and Karli and all
that, was additional light. But the really remarkable thing for her was the
QCamp.

K: That was what McClelland algo said. That thE whole thing started at
the O Camps.

I: That is quite true, but the Q Camp was the direct resulf of people in the
Auxiliary Left getting together with us and deciding ¢n what they wouid do
to discuss their own situation and the answer was the Q Camps.

K: But lreni the more | think about this, about Karli's involvement in the
Christian Left and the things you have teen telling me, the more it seems
*ha?_g_u ou u*rti_[]ir}ulu that H-i“’ rﬂlarmnahm with rrrg faiher was quite

R ———————

fHE‘F‘Jﬂ but__biqﬁuw ol Rad Hved in ‘nr"Erﬂfr fur S0 Many years. Vienna and
everything that went on there is an P.xper‘errf‘e a very I:laﬂr: F’Pﬁ"lE'r‘I erce, ,
which theze English people did not have. :

i Yes and if we hadn't had it, notl only Karli but we, the Auxiliary

Movement wouldn't have gone down the drain or anything, it was very much
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alive but 1t wouidn't have taken on this peculiar colour. It was because of
the people wha came from Yienna, on the whole, that it took on this kind of
colour,
K: But the people who came from Yienna were Donald, ireni and Karli.
were aclually visiting Vienns to heip &g a result.
K: Oh | didn't know that.,
I Yes they stayed with me in 1934, when | went back in 1934, | went
back with money from the Auxiliary to help get socialists out of Yienna in
1934. John and Betty came too. John was very much in it from the very
start and the first person apart from us who put (Karli) up and 1ooked after F.
| him with his shoes and his cloek? ware John end Betty MacMurray. That's
where he went. The contact is very eariy and, of course, John and Betty
xnew about Karli before 1934, 1934 was kind of ate in our lives. _
K. It has alwaus seemed to me that you, Donald, now you tell me John |
MacMurray, of course, had a different relationship with my father than the
English people did. Eﬁﬁ%eggs and Marjorie. These people were.
I: Or even Douglas McClelland
K: Any of them really whose experience was basically oniy English.,
|: But you have to know that there wouldn't have been any Chrigtian Left at
all, at the time there was, if it hadn't been for John MacMurray. That's the
rr paint and I'm very much in danger, because I'm very keen, to lsave this out.
g And the peopie that I'm talking to are beginning to notice. And theyre
| beginning to say but that's not what took me into the Christian Left. So it
Jaf is really very tight woven because my friendship with John, which was
closer than anybody else’'s at the cerlain stage, began in 1921 when he was
a very young man.
K. what was his background? Was he a minister of the Church or what?
I "1t tell you. He was born into & very Presbyterian, south Scottish
family, some of whom | met, including his sister, in later 1ife. He went. he
did britliantiy in Edinburgh University and he very quickly began to teach
philosophy. And he read philosophy widely.
K: Where did he teach? Edinburgh?
|- ¥es, | think he began in Edinburgh but it was very early. when | met him
he was in Manchester and in Manchester in 1922, 1920 and 1921, he had
come out of the First World war, where he'd been fighting. He'd been
wounded and decorated and was now beginning o teach philosophy again.
And he taught and what a show it was And there was Samuel Alexander,
the) was a very famous, Jewish professor of philosophy in Manchesier and
John, from that time an, John taught philosophy and he was always a very
dissident philosopher, in the sense that he thought a lot of it was rubbish
because it didn't lead to anything. Now John was in Edinburgh, and in
Uaford, which ne called another kindergarten, Jehannesburg, where he had
some very strange andilluminating experiences. Then London; for a long
time he was at the University College and then he went finally back to

Lo
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Edinburgh. Now while he was in London, his aim was to teach philosophy to (B/
students on the basis of their own active living experience not the
classical philosophers. Begin where you are and then we'll see about the
classical philosophers. And in order to do that, he made a definite plan.
The plan was that he would write no philosophical traatise of Mis own
uniil the end of his teaching career. He would do what he had to do to help
his studenis to understand what philesophy was about. And it was during
thet time that he wrote this enormous list of things which you saw. it's
Michael Fielding.... Faber are still re-publishing some: Freedom in the
Modern wWorld etc. They were turned out one after the other for the
students. And only when he was about to retire or getting near retirement
age did he write his two treatises, which are so unlike anything else in the
world of philosophy that they ere reqarded 55 somehow freaks. The Self as
Aqgent was the first one and Persons and Relations was the second. Now
the fact that at the Saint 7 South Conference, when he was asked: well
after all that is said and done, what 15 a Christian?, his answer was: Well
if you share the intention of Jesus, namely that the whole of mankind
should be interdependantiy organized for its interdependance under one's
father, putting it in religious terms, then you are s Christian. I you do not
intend that, if you do not consciously intend that, it doesn't matter what
else you believe, then you are not a Chrigtian. Now Karli, you see, coming
from Mary, said, Marx said exactly the same thing about what the irue
philosophy of human nature is. What is it7 Mensch menschlich. That's in /

the Nazionalokonomie und Philosophie. The actual phrase is used by Karl
Marx. | know becauge | found it and translated il

K: Hbw does that transiate into English?

l: Hurmanly human or human humanly. | mean it's not directiy transiatable.
But nobody wants to believe me when | say that Merx simply said it hasto
be Mensch menschiich. well John, _this was exactly his point. And that
was what Karli kept on saying and what John was very well aware of.

K: Qkay. You have explained to me that {(John) came from a strict
Presbyterian background and about his evoiution as a teacher of

philosophy. Now where does Christianity come into it

|: They were very narrow Presbuyterians and when | asked him whether it
had ever been any good to him, he $a8id, "Yes, in fact, it was because il's
very substantial about the nature of 1ife. You may not agree but it is very
substantial and then, having chewed it, it's very good to spit it out.” So
that's John He was never, in any way, after that connected with any
organized Christian group except the Christian Left, to my knowledge.
Fxcept towards the end of his life when he decide to join the Quakers. And
he joined the Quakers very shortiy before he died. And he was buried in the
Quiaker church.

K: But other than that he never had anuthing to do with any organized
church?

i: Mot as far as | know. And | knew him very well. In fact, he and Betly and




— ey

Donald and |, in 1933, vhan Karll came from Yienna and John was 8 9
constantly in our joint flat, made s decision to have s joint set up as a o
family and to stay together as & family group. 'We didn't do it for @ number
of reasons. One was that John and Betty had no children but because Betty
had these nephews who were being brought up by a widowed maother, a very
dear person but she wasn't an arganizing person, they decided that they
must make themselves responsible for these two children and that meant
also their mother. And, therefore, this joint family thing never came up,
but Karli knew abeut it and it very nearly did come up and John and Betty
and Donald and |, as couples were very close. Now when it didn't come off,
it didn't mean anuthing except that it didn't come off. As far as this was
concerned, John centinued just the same. And the fact that John and Betty,
because of us, welcomed Karli and had him there, and | have no doubt at all
that this was a very good thing from both points of view and it didn't 1ast
wary long. But Karli knew John from the very first minute and John had
reached the point, which | was proud to describe as anti-dualist, and in a
way very close to the Marxian position about either you change the
structure or it doesn't mean anything. He had aiready arrived there pefore
the Christian Left group even started. So in & way, Kenneth's idea, that
somehow Karli introduced John to Mary, is stupid. It's true in the sense
that it suddenly became the centre of study.

K: well, why Marx became the centre of study at that time is not difficuit
to understand Wwhat | still do not understand really, from what you've told
me of John and Betty, or for that matter of yourself and Donald and my
father, | do not understand from where came the idea of Christianity,

I: Well, | was brought up as a wWesleyan Methogist. |'ve belonged o the
Church all my life. Donald was never anything else.

K. But you didn't actually go to church?

i: Donald went pretty regulariy until the time we went 1o Yienna, But he
was very much a dissident in the sense that he thought, when he went to
prison, that it was the Church that was being wronged, not him. And |
thought the same. And so, although Donald and | belonged to various
Christian groups including the Student Movement and the Auxiliary and
Donald aciually for four and a half was the secretary of the Student
Christian Movement in New Zealand, so that our connections with Christian

qroups, who regarded themselves not as church-goers, was constant. ¢ M)
Inciuding my father, who was after all a Wesleyan Methodist missionary. (‘?“" : /
But by the time | was a student, he was belonging with me almost outside %&iﬁﬂ}

his Church. So it's very difficull to define it. John regarded himself as &
part af the body of Christian thought, even though he'd given the
Presbyterian Church up long ago. The only people, well it isn't quite true,
but the only people | can easily say had little groups inside the Church,
being very left, were unknown Catholics, 1ike in South Africa or South
America, being Christians in spite of everything, helping guerillas and so
on, well, | call those people who were, in fact, though inside their Church,
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gutside it, because they were never recognized these people. People in the
Anglican Church, 11ke Meedham, who always stayed with his Church,

__whether he goes, es, | don't know. People like 7 in Thaxted and Noel at

Tnahted stayed in their Church.

¢ They were Anglican, Church of England.

|: John Wesley never left the Anglican Church. He was an Anglican Church
member until hiz death. Bui he was a rabblerouser of the first order
outside the Church. In fact, Karli said, he almost mede a revolution. He
actually side-stepped it. So that, in this country, it's very difficult.
Heaps and heaps of people will say to you thet they are Christians, who
haver go insida a church door,
K: But heaps of people who are asked, may say they are Christian, but they
would not, certainly not in these times, be active as a social Christian in-
any type of sociat movement..

I: You mean socialist?
K: Ng, | mean social action, invelved in things that are, so to speak,
community oriented and are basically socially oriented, coming out of the
Churches today. As Christians, they would do it within the framework of
the Church or on a margin of the Church.

I Some would regard themselves as having done their Christian duty,
where they are doing it in social work or whatever, without ever going to
church. But if you ask them they would say, "Yes well, | fesl I'm
Christian.” Helen Kennipcott? is an exception. Helen? 13 a very aciive

member on the left, inside the Anglican Church. She is not only a member

of her Church she is also a teacher within the Church organization. She
goes to sunod; she takes part in all the structure, every single week _I'm
perfectiy certain, that if you asked her: "Do you do your W.E.A. teaching as
a Christian?”, she would say, "Of course, | do.” Her husband is a Hindu and
he is strongly in favour of her doing this because it gives meaning to all
the other things they do. Now, Karli never went....

K: The biggest mystery then is really concerning my father with this
Christien Left thing, because, this is the next question | want to ask you,
how is it that Karli got sc mixed up with the Christian Left. 1 can
understand how it is that he gave ciasses §n the esrly Marx, becasuse he
was a great teacher and because he believed very much in what the eariy
Marx was saying. But | find it difficuit to understand this apparent change
from someone who, certainiy in Yienna, was very secular.

I: well he was very much interested in little Dtio Bauer. He was
supportive of him and he was very supportive of Donald. In a sense it was
political, because he really thought that Donaid was peing manipulated by
thig Jesuit. But that's a different thing..

K. Yes that's different. That's palitics.

I: And | think | have to say this. | think he was very impressed, so he
should have been, by Joe and her colleagues in the Auxiliary Movement,
because they were very substantlial peaple and they were very keen




Chrigtians. Margaret Ronan? and Joseph Fairfield 7 would taik to him on
their own grounds about their Christian faith. | think Karli was impressed
with them, quite rightly. Se was i. Because they could tell you exactly
what they meant. And they scted in character. They stood by him when
people were cross with him because they realized that he belonged. Now |
can't explain it better than that.

K: But you understand that it has to be explained.

|: You could say that, because | knew Karli very well, | don't think he was
using these people. In @& way it Tooks like that. But | don't think so.

K: Yes in g way.

I: we didn't feel we were being used. And, of course, there were many
people who came from various angies into the Christian Left. They were
very much enlighiened by the ides that it wasn't this bloody dogmatic Marx
that they had to worry about but somebody who was very close to their
oven Teelings and Karli was able to do that. | don't think that's using
peopla. it's recognizing what was in them.

K: what was the connection between the Christian Left group and Karli's
involvement with them and his getting W.EA. tutorials?

I; well | don't think the Christian Left had-anything to do with thet,
Because when he came to Epgegfiﬁ}“ﬁe was seeing aften, and | mean
often, RH. Tawney. | have got somewhers letters written by Karli to
Tawney. He was in touch with Mansfield. | think his name was Manzfield,
an Englishman who helped Lo organize the W.E.A. Jack Connolly who tried
to help me, he lived near this man, and | can find his name. Jack Connotly
talked to him about using me and that's how Karli met him but that was
quite outside the Christien Left meetings. 11 tell you with whem he had
guite a bit of contact and that was Tammy Streep. She was the head of &
College in south London. | can find the name later. It was a kind of working
man's college. And she was a member of the Christian Left so she would
have been one of the people who would have talked to Karli about W.EA
I'm sure there were others. Sometime 111 look through the letters and '
get the names. Of course, there were people of the W.EA. variety inside
ihe Christian Left. But Karli's contact with the W.EA. was | nrough the
Christian Left, &P

K: would you know how he contacted the WEA? | think it waaﬂfjcﬂe yrasn't
it?

|l ..He went to see Cole and Cole thought very highly of Karii and Karli
regsrded Caole, in my opinion and |'m speaking only for myself, as a kind of
rebirth of Owen. Of course he wasn't like that. well of course with Lole
the limerick comes in, the funny limerick, when he was having dinner with
Cole in O=ford. | gave it to Margarei. That's very amusing but it's aizo
yery instructive. He was invited by Cole and he saw Cole on several
occasions. Margarst is still alive but she wouldn't remember. There Wwere
somme Fabians but who were they? 1 can't remember. {Irene says she will
look for lists of members etc. ) In Karli's existence | wouldn't like to say
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